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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors of Tampa Electric Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Peoples Gas System (the “Company™), a division of
Tampa Electric Company, which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
statements of income and retained earnings for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements, included on pages 6 through 11 of the accompanying Annual Report of Natural Gas Utilities, and
related notes filed with the Florida Public Service Commission as required by Rule 25-7.135 (2).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these regulatory basis financial statements
in conformity with the financial reporting provisions of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) as
set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting releases as described in the
opening paragraph in the notes; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Peoples Gas System as of December 31,2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations for the years
then ended, on the basis of the financial reporting provisions of the FERC as set forth in its applicable Uniform
System of Accounts and published accounting releases described in the opening paragraph in the notes.

fum of



EY

Building a better
working world

Regulatory Basis of Accounting

As described in the opening paragraph in the notes to the financial statements, the financial statements have been
prepared by Peoples Gas System on the basis of the financial reporting provisions of the FERC as set forth in its
applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting releases, which is a basis of accounting other
than U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, to meet the requirements of the FERC. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Restriction on Use

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of Tampa Electric Company and the Florida Public
Service Commission and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.
ézvm:t ¥ MLLP

April 29, 2021
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING THE
ANNUAL REPORT OF NATURAL GAS UTILITIES

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

VI.

VII.

VIIL.

Prepare this report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts (18 CFR 201) (U.S. of A.).
interpret all accounting words and phrases in accordance with the U.S. of A.

Enter in whole numbers (dollars or Mcf) only, except where otherwise noted. (Enter cents for averages and
figures per unit where cents are important.) The truncating of cents is allowed except on the four basic financial
statements where rounding to dollars is required. The amounts shown on all supporting pages must agree

with the amounts entered on the statements that they support. When applying thresholds to determine
significance for reporting purposes, use for balance sheet accounts the balances at the end of the current
reporting year, and use for statement of income accounts the current year's amounts.

Complete each question fully and accurately, even if it has been answered in a previous annual report. Enter
the word "None" where it truly and completely states the fact.

For any page that is not applicable to the respondent, enter the words "Not Applicable” on the particular page.

Provide a supplemental statement further explaining accounts or pages as necessary. Attach the supplemental
statement to the page being supplemented on 8 1/2 by 11 inch paper. Provide the appropriate identification infor-
mation on the supplemental page, including the titie of the page and the page number. Do not change the page
numbers.

Do not make references to reports of previous years or to other reports in lieu of required entries, except
as specifically authorized.

Wherever schedule pages refer to figures from a previous year, the figures reported must be based upon
those shown by the annual report of the previous year, or an appropriate explanation given as to why
different figures were used.

Report all gas volumes on a pressure base of 14.73 psia and a temperature base of 60° F.

DEFINITIONS

Btu per cubic foot - The total heating value expressed in Btu, produced by the combustion, at constant
pressure, of the amount of the gas which would occupy a volume of 1 cubic foot at a temperature of 60° F

if saturated with water vapor and under a pressure equivalent to that of 30 inches of mercury at 32° F,

and under standard gravitational force (980.665 cm per sec. 2) with air of the same temperature and pressure
as the gas, when the products of combustion are cooled to the initial temperature of gas and air when the
water formed by combustion is condensed to the liquid state. (Sometimes called gross heating value or total
heating value.)

Respondent - The person, corporation, licensee, agency, authority, or other legal entity or instrumentality
in whose behalf the report is made.

Page i




ANNUAL REPORT OF NATURAL GAS UTILITIES

IDENTIFICATION

01

Exact Legal Name of Respondent

02 Year of Report

Peoples Gas System, a Division of Tampa Electric Company 2020

03

Previous Name and Date of Change (if name changed during year)

04

Address of Principal Office at End of Year (Street, City, State, Zip Code)

702 N. Frankiin Street Tampa, Florida 33602

05

Name of Contact Person

Rosemary Barbour

06 Title of Contact Person

Accounting Director

07

Address of Contact Person (Street, City, State, Zip Code)

P.Q Box 2562 Tampa, Florida 33601-2562

08

Telephone of Contact Person, Including Area Code

(813) 228 - 4191

09 Date of Report (Mo., Day, Yr)

Dec. 31, 2020

ATTESTATION

I certify that | am the

Peoples G

responsible accounting officer of

as System

that | have examined the following report; that to the best of my knowledge
information, and belief, all statements of fact contained in the said report are true
and the said report is a correct statement of the business and affairs of the above-

named respondent in respect to

each and every matter set forth therein during the

period from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020, inclusive.

I also certify that all affiliated transfer prices and affiliated cost allocations
were determined consistent with the methods reported to this Commission on the
appropriate forms included in this report.

| am aware that Section 837.08, Florida Statutes, provides:

Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing

with the intent to mislead a public servant in the

performance of his or her official duty shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in
S.775.082 and S. 775.083.

ﬁowﬂ—w) /’W

Signature /

Rosemary Barbour
Name

VY NEY,

Date '

Director General Accounting
Title
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Name of Respondent

For the Year Ended

Peoples Gas System Dec. 31, 2020
TABLE OF CONTENTS B -
Title of Schedule Page No. Title of Schedule Page No.
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GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION AND INCOME ACCOUNT SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
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(Assets And Other Debits) Reconciliation of Gross Operating Revenues -
Annual Report versus Regulatory Assessment Fee Return 34
Summary of Utility Plant and Accum. Prov. for
Depreciation, Amortization, and Depletion 12
Gas Plant in Service 13-14
Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization 15-16 DIVERSIFICATION ACTIVITY
Construction Work in Progress - Gas 17
Construction Overheads - Gas 17 Corporate Structure 35
Prepayments 18 Summary of Affiliated Transfers and Cost Allocations 36
Extraordinary Property Losses 18 New or Amended Contracts with Affiliated Companies 37
Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 18 | Individual Affiliated Transactions in Excess of $25,000 37
Other Regulatory Assets 19 | Assets or Rights Purchased from or Sold to Affiliates 38
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 19 Employee Transfers 38
(Liabilities and Other Credits)
Securities Issued and Securities
Refunded or Retired During the Year 20
Unamortized Loss and Gain on Reacquired Debt 20
Long-Term Debt 21
Unamortized Debt Exp., Premium and Discount
on Long-Term Debt 21
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities 22
Other Deferred Credits 22
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Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 23
Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits 23
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes 24
Reconciliation of Reported Net Income with
Taxable Income for Federal Income Taxes 25
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Name of Respondent

Peoples Gas System

For the Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2020

CONTROL OVER RESPONDENT

1. If any corporation, business trust, or similar organization or
combination of such organizations jointly held control over the
respondent at end of year, state name of controlling corporation
or organization, manner in which control was held, and extent of
control. If control was in a holding company organization, show
the chain of ownership or control to the main parent company or

organization. If control was held by a trustee(s), state name of
trustee(s).

2. If the above required information is available from the SEC
10K Report Form filing, a specific reference to the report form
(i.e. year and company title) may be listed provided the fiscal
years for both the 10-K report and this report are compatible.

Peoples Gas System is a division of Tampa Electric Company, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of TECO Energy.

On July 1, 2016, TECO Energy and Emera completed the Merger contemplated by the Merger Agreement entered into
on September 4, 2015. As a result of the Merger, the Merger Sub Company merged with and into TECO Energy with
TECO Energy continuing as the surviving corporation and becoming a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Emera.

The acquisition method of accounting was not pushed down to TECO Energy or its subsidiaries, including TEC (PGS).

CORPORATIONS CONTROLLED BY RESPONDENT

1. Report below the names of all corporations, business trusts,
and similar organizations, controlled directly or indirectly by
respondent at any time during the year. If control ceased prior
to end of year, give particulars {details) in a footnote.

2. If control was by other means than a direct holding of voting
rights, state in a footnote the manner in which control was
held, naming any intermediaries involved.

3. If control was held jointly with one or more other interests,
state the fact in a footnote and name the other interests.

4. If the above required information is available from the SEC
10-K Report Form filing, a specific reference to the report form
(i.e. year and company titie) may be listed in column (a) provided
the fiscal years for both the 10-K report and this report are
compatible.

DEFINITIONS

1. See the Uniform System of Accounts for a definition of
control.

2. Direct control is that which is exercised without

interposition of an intermediary.

3. Indirect control is that which is exercised by the interposition
of an intermediary which exercises direct control.

4. Joint control is that in which neither interest can effectively

control or direct action without the consent of the other, as

where the voting control is equally divided between two holders,
or each party holds a veto power over the other. Joint control
may exist by mutual agreement or understanding between two or
more parties who together have control within the meaning of the
definition of control in the Uniform System of Accounts,
regardless of the relative voting rights of each party.

Name of Company Controlled Kind of Business Percent Voting |Footnote
Stock Owned Ref.
(a) (b) {c) (d)
TECO Partners Marketing Services 100%
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Name of Respondent

Peoples Gas System

For the Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2020

OFFICERS

1. Report below the name, title and salary for each executive officer whose salary is $50,000 or more. An "executive officer" of a

respondent includes its president, secretary, treasurer, and vice president in charge of a principal business unit, division or

function (such as sales, administration or finance), and any other person who performs similar policymaking functions.
2. Ifa change was made during the year in the incumbent of any position, show name and total remuneration of the previous

incumbent, and date the change in incumbency was made.

Title Name of Officer Salary for Year
(a) (b) ()
President Peoples Gas System T Szelistowski $ 330,000
VP Marketing and Sales, PGS J. Wehle $ 133,173
VP Gas Operations, PGS R. Wall $ 254 678
VP Business Development, PGS T. O'Connor $ 218,148
VP Customer Experience 1/2020-8/2020 M. Whiting $ 43,482
VP Customer Experience 10/2020-12/2020 K. Sparkman $ 16,313
Controller, PGS S. Hillary $ 184,370
VP Strategy, PGS C. Richard $ 158,314
VP Pipeline Safety &
Regulatory Affairs L. Buzard $ 191,475
Chief Operating Officer 10/2020-12/2020 H. Wesley $ 53,922
Salaries for the year represent the Peoples Gas System share of individual salaries.
|
DIRECTORS
1. Report below the information called for concerning each 2. Designate members of the Executive Committee by an
director of the respondent who held office at any time during the asterisk and the Chairman of the Executive Committee by
year. include in column (a) abbreviated titles of the directors a double asterisk.
who are officers of the respondent.
No. of
Directors
Meetings Fees During
Name (and Title) of Director Principal Business Address During Yr Year
{a) (b) (c) ()]

Peoples Gas System, as a division of
Tampa Electric Company, has no
Directors.

Page 4




Name of Respondent

Peoples Gas System

For the Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2020

SECURITY HOLDERS AND VOTING POWERS

1. Give the names and addresses of the 10 security holders of the
respondents who, at the date of the latest closing of the stock book or
compilation of the list of stockholders of the respondent, prior to the end
of the year, had the highest voting powers in the respondent, and state
the number of votes which each would have had the right to cast on that
date if a meeting were in order. If any such holder held in trust, give

in a footnete the known particulars of the trust (whether voting trust, etc.)
duration of the trust, and principal holders of beneficiary interests in the
trust. If the stock book was not closed or a list of stockholders was not
complied within one year prior to the end of the year, or if since the
previous compilation of a list of stockholders, some other class of
security has become vested with voting rights, then show such 10 security
holders as of the close of the year. Arrange the names of the security
holders in the order of voting power, commencing with the highest. Show
in column (a) the titles of officers and directors included in such list of 10
security holders.

2. If any security other than stock carries voting rights, expiain in a sup-
plemental statement of circumstances whereby such security became

vested with voting rights and give others important particulars
(details) concerning the voting rights of such security. State
whether voting rights are actual or contingent if contingent,
describe the contingency.

3. If any class or issue of security has any special privileges
in the election of directors, trustees or managers, or in the
determination of corporate action by any method, explain
briefly in a footnote.

4. Furnish particulars (details) concerning any options,
warrants, or rights outstanding at the end of the year for

others to purchase securities of the respondent or any
securities or other assets owned by the respondent, including
prices, expiration dates, and other material information relating
to exercise of the options, warrants, or rights. Specify the
amount of such securities or assets so entitled to be purchased
by any officer, director, associated company, or any of the

ten largest security holders.

VOTING SECURITIES

Number of votes as of (date):

Name (Title) and Address of Security Holder
(a)

Preferred Stock
(d)

Other
(e)

Common Stock
(c)

Total Votes
(b)

TOTAL votes of all voting securities

TOTAL number of security holders

TOTAL votes of security holders listed below

Peoples Gas System, as a division of Tampa Electric
Company, has no outstanding shares of common stock.

All outstanding shares of Tampa Electric Company
common stock were held by its parent, TECO Energy, Inc.
As disclosed on page 3, on July 1, 2016, TECO Energy and
Emera completed the Merger contemplated by the Merger
Agreement entered into on September 4, 2015. Therefore,
TEC continues to be a wholly owned subsidiary of TECO
Energy and became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
Emera as of July 1, 2016.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, upon the closing of the
Merger, each issued and outstanding share of TECO
Energy common stock was cancelled and converted
automatically into the right to receive $27.55 in cash,
without interest.

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

Give particulars (details) concerning the matters indicated below. Make the 3. Important extension or reduction of transmission or distribution

statements explicit and precise, and number them in accordance with the
inquires. Each inquiry should be answered. Enter "none" "not applicable,”
or "NA" where applicable. [f information which answers an inquiry is given
elsewhere in the report, make a reference to the schedule in which it
appears.

1. Acquisition of ownership in other companies by reorganization, merger,
or consolidation with other companies: Give name of companies involved.
particulars concerning the transactions.

2. Purchase or sale of an operating unit or system: Give brief description
of the property, and of the transactions relating thereto, and reference to
Commission authorization, if any was required.

system: State territory added or relinquished and date operations
began or ceased also the approximate number of customers added
or lost and approximate annual revenues of each class of service.
4. State briefly the status of any materially importart legal
proceedings pending at the end of the year, and the resuits

of any such proceedings culminated during the year.

5. State briefly the status of any materially important transactions of
the respondent not disclosed elsewhere in this report in which an
officer, director, security holder, voting trustee, associated
company or known associate of any of these persons was a party
or in which any such person had a material interest.

1 None
2 None

3 February 5, 2020 entered in to a territorial Agreement between PGS and the City of Leesburg, The Villages Land Company, LLC and
Sumter Gas Utility. Transfer date was June 2020. Approximately 3,500 additional residential customers.
4  Please see the Commitments and Contingencies section of the included Notes to the Financial Statements - page 11-W.

5 None
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Name of Respondent For the Year Ended
Peoples Gas System Dec. 31, 2020
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS)
Ref. Balance at Balance at
Line Title of Account Page No. Beginning of Year| End of Year
No. (a) (b) (c) (d)
1 UTILITY PLANT
2 Utility Plant (101-106, 114) 12 1,947,846,992 2,197,237,545
3 Construction Work in Progress (107) 12 71,222,206 140,807,878
4 TOTAL Utility Plant Total of lines 2 and 3) 2,019,069,198 2,338,045,423
5 (Less) Accum. Prov. for Depr., Amort., Depl. & Acq. Adj. (108, 111, 115) 12 784,450 415 814,871,257
6 Net Utility Plant (Total of line 4 less 5) 1,234,618,783 1,523,174,166
7 Utility Plant Adjustments (116) 11
8 Gas Stored (117.1, 117.2, 117.3, 117.4) -
9 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS
10 Nonutility Property (121) -
11 {Less) Accum. Prov. for Depr. and Amort. (122) -
12 Investments in Associated Companies (123) -
13 Investment in Subsidiary Companies (123.1) - 902,043 1,208,346
14 Other Investments (124) -
15 Special Funds (125, 126, 128) -
16 TOTAL Other Property and Investments (Total of lines 10 through 15) 902,043 1,208,346
17 CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS
18 Cash (131) - 8,303,869 -
19 Special Deposits (132-134) - 25,000 25,000
20 Working Funds (135) - 2,950 2,950
21 Temporary Cash Investments (136) =
22 Notes Receivable (141) -
23 Customer Accounts Receivable (142) - 28,445 716 29,061,274
24 Other Accounts Receivable (143) - 1,394,531 621,523
25 {Less) Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts-Credit (144) - (36,809) (1,047,189)
26 Notes Receivable from Associated Companies (145) - 9,933,659
27 Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies (146) - 1,028,392 692,220
28 Fuel Stock {151) -
29 Fuel Stock Expense Undistributed (152) -
30 Residuals (Electric) and Extracted Products (Gas) (153) -
31 Plant Material and Operating Supplies (154) - 2,401,229 2,998,336
32 Merchandise (155) -
33 Other Material and Supplies (156) -
34 Stores Expenses Undistributed (163) -
35 Gas Stored Underground & LNG Stored (164.1-164.3) -
36 Prepayments (165) 18 1,409,779 1,156,913
37 Advances for Gas (166-167) -
38 Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) -
39 Rents Receivable (172) -
40 Accrued Utility Revenues (173) - 12,585,260 15,058,285
41 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets (174) -
42 TOTAL Current and Accrued Assets (Total of lines 18 through 41) 55,559,917 58,502,971
43 DEFERRED DEBITS
44 Unamortized Debt Expense (181) - 2,233,061 2,130,262
45 Extraordinary Property Losses (182.1) 18
46 Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs (182.2) 18
47 Other Regulatory Assets (182.3) 18 59,279,093 68,727,179
48 Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (Gas) (183.1, 183.2) -
49 Clearing Accounts (184) -
50 Temporary Facilities (185) -
51 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186) 19 4,808,375 4,055,965
52 Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant. (187) -
53 Research, Development and Demonstration Expenditures (188) -
54 Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt (189) 20
55 Accumulated Deferred income Taxes (190) 24 54,966,422 58,693,569
56 Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs (191) - (5,610,499) (1,887,381)
57 TOTAL Deferred Debits (Total of lines 44 through 56) 115,676,452 131,719,594
58 TOTAL Assets and other Debits (Total of lines 6, 7, 8, 16, 42, 57) 1,406,757,195 1,714,605,077
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Name of Respondent For the Year Ended
Peoples Gas System Dec. 31, 2020
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Ref. Balance at Balance at
Line Title of Account Page No.| Beginning of Year End of Year
No. (a) {b) {c) (d)
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Coemmon Stock (201, 202, 203, 205, 208, 207) -
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) -
4 Other Paid-In Capital (208-214) - 415,550,169 545,550,169
5 Retained Earnings (215, 216) 10 115,649 893 116,111,278
6 Other Comprehensive Income (219) (348,624) (323,998)
7 Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 10 453,354 759,657
8 (Less) Reacquired Capital Stock (217) -
9 TOTAL Proprietary Capital (Total of lines 2 through 8) 531,304,792 662,097,106
10 LONG-TERM DEBT
11 Bonds (221) 21
12 (Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 21
13 Advances from Associated Companies (223) 21
14 Other Long-Term Debt (224) 21 336,764,680 336,764,680
15 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) 21
16 (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Debit (226) 21 (1,151,479) (1,103,546)
17 TOTAL Long-Term Debt (Total of lines 11 through 16) 335,613,201 335,661,134
18 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
19 Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (227) -
20 Accumuiated Provision for Property insurance (228.1) - 84,356 141,856
21 Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages (228.2) - 4,329,964 4,855,734
22 Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3) - 27,985,644 32,810,770
23 Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions (228.4) - 88,501 152,995
24 Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229) -
25 TOTAL Other Noncurrent Liabitities (Total of lines 19 through 24) 32,488,465 37,961,355
26 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
27 Notes Payable {231) - 91,138,979 214,352,135
28 Accounts Payable (232) - 59,685,490 80,684,738
29 Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233) -
30 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234) - 11,465,300 14,186,404
31 Customer Deposits (235) - 26,273,516 25,669,278
32 Taxes Accrued (236) - 4,000,873 6,793,553
33 Interest Accrued (237) - 1,450,837 1,444,461
34 Dividends Declared (238) -
35 Matured Long-Term Debt (239) -
36 Matured Interest (240) -
37 Tax Collections Payable (241) - 827,365 1,112,228
38 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 22 27,099,277 25,201,689
39 Obligations Under Capital Leases-Current (243) - ;
40 Derivative Liabilities (245)
41 TOTAL Current and Accrued Liabilities (Total of lines 27 through 40) 221,941,637 369,444 486
42 DEFERRED CREDITS
43 Customer Advances for Construction (252) - 12,852,701 15,681,265
44 Other Deferred Credits (253) 22 5,996,478 8,261,983
45 Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 22 91,671,584 93,574,070
46 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255) 23
47 Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256) -
48 Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257) 20
49 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (281-283) 24 174,788,337 191,923,678
50 TOTAL Deferred Credits (Total of lines 43 through 49) 285,409,100 309,440,996
51 TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Total of lines 9, 17, 25, 41 and 50) 1,406,757,195 1,714,605,077
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Name of Respondent

Peoples Gas System

For the Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2020

STATEMENT OF INCOME

1. Use page 11 for important notes regarding the statement
of income or any account thereof.

2. Give concise explanations on page 11 concerning signifi-
cant amounts of any refunds made or received during the year.
3. Enter on page 11 a concise explanation of only

those changes in accounting methods made during the year

which had an effect on net income, including the basis of
allocations and apportionments from those used in the
preceding year. Also give the approximate dollar effect
of such changes.

4. Explain in a footnote if the previous year's figures

are different from that reported in prior reports.

Ref. Total Total
Page Gas Utility Gas Utility
Line Account No. Current Year Previous Year
No. (a) (b) (c) (d)
1 UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
2| Operating Revenues (400) 26 411,567,312 439,797,556
3| Operating Expenses
4| Operation Expenses (401) 27-29 242,179,038 269,518,916
5| Maintenance Expenses (402) 27-29 8,823,005 9,472,693
6| Depreciation Expense (403) 15-16 42,969,675 39,011,147
7| Amortization & Depletion of Utility Plant (404-405) - 2,396,481 2,109,290
8| Amortization of Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustment (406) - 129,709 149,146
9| Amortization of Property Losses, Unrecovered Plant
and Regulatory Study Costs (407.1) -
10| Amortization of Conversion Expenses (407.2) -
11| Regulatory Debits (407.3) - 7,616,536 4,960,498
12| (Less) Regulatory Credits (407.4) - (7,824,324) (7,080,111)
13| Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408.1) 23 40,893,043 41,229,532
14| Income Taxes - Federal (409.1) - 638,333 5,100,264
15 - Other (409.1) - (1,197,793) (336,687)
16| Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 24 15,080,004 12,238,375
17| (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes - Cr.(411.1) 24
18] Investment Tax Credit Adjustment - Net (411.4) 23
19| (Less) Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.6) -
20| Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.7) -
21| Other Operating Income (412-414) - 1,807,533 1,945,439
22| TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Total of lines 4 -21) 349,896,174 374,427,624
23| Net Utility Operating income (Total of line 2 less 22)
24 (Carry forward to page 9, line 25) 61,671,138 65,369,932
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Name of Respondent For the Year Ended
Peoples Gas System Dec. 31, 2020
STATEMENT OF INCOME (Continued)
Ref. TOTAL
Line Account Page No. Current Year Previous Year
No. (a) (b) (©) (d)
25 Net Utility Operating Income (Carried forward from page 8) 61,671,138 65,369,932
26 Other Income and Deductions
27 Cther Income
28 Nonutility Operating income
29 Revenues From Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415) - (2,127) (782)
30 (Less) Costs and Exp. of Merchandising, Job & Contract Work (416) - (7,941) 11,511
31 Revenues From Nonutility Operations (417) -
32 (Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations (417.1) -
33 Nonoperating Rental Income (418) -
34 Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 10 3,280,081 3,616,890
35 Interest and Dividend Income (419) - 81,044 26,450
36 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1) - 3,121,604 470,414
37 Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) - 31,724 133,673
38 Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1) - 1,025,533 2,140,586
39 TOTAL Other Income (Total of lines 29 through 38) 7,529,818 6,398,742
40 Other Income Deductions
41 Loss an Disposition of Property (421.2) - 51,653
42 Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 33
43 Miscellaneous Income Deductions (426.1-426.5) 33 543,559 474,197
44 TOTAL Other Income Deductions (Total of lines 41 through 43) 595,212 474,197
45 Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions
46 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408.2) -
47 Income Taxes - Federal (409.2) - (98,810) 60,576
48 income Taxes - Other (409.2) - (21,955) 13,459
49 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.2) 24 - 816
50 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes - Credit (411.2) 24
51 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment - Net (411.5) -
52 (Less) Investment Tax Credits (420) -
53 TOTAL Taxes on Other Inc. and Ded. (Total of 46 through 52) (120,765) 74,851
54 Net Other Income and Deductions (Total of lines 39,44,53) 7,055,471 5,849,694
55 Interest Charges
56 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427) - 15,429,008 14,925 536
57 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428) 21 185,662 174,489
58 Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1) -
59 (Less) Amortization of Premium on Debt - Credit (429) 21
60 (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt - Credit (429.1) -
61 Interest on Debt to Associated Companies (430) 33
62 Other Interest Expense (431) 33 2,198,602 2,241,474
63 (Less) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Const.-Credit (432) - (1,002,052) (151,0086)
64 Net Interest Charges (Total of lines 56 through 83) 16.811,220 17.190.493
65 Income Before Extraordinary Items (Total of lines 25, 54 and 64) 51,915,389 54,029,133
66 Extraordinary ltems
67 Extraordinary Income (434) B
68 (Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435) -
69 Net Extraordinary ltems (Total of line 67 less line 68)
70 Income Taxes - Federal and Other (409.3) -
71 Extraordinary Items After Taxes (Total of line 69 less line 70)
72 Net Income (Total of lines 65 and 71) 51,915,389 54,029,133
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Name of Respondent

Peoples Gas System

For the Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2020

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

1. Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, and
unappropriated retained earnings for the year.

2. Each credit and debit during the year should be identified
as to the retained earnings account in which recorded
(Accounts 433, 436-439 inclusive). Show the contra primary
account affected in column (b).

3. State the purpose and amount for each reservation or
appropriation of retained earnings.

4. List first Account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings,
reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained
earnings. Follow by credit, then debit items, in that order.

Earnings.

5. Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.
6. Show separately the state and federal income tax effect
of items shown in account 439, Adjustments to Retained

7. Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the
amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservations or
appropriation is to be recurrent, state the number and annuatl
amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals
eventually to be accumulated.

8. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are
applicable to this statement attach them at page 11.

Contra
Primary
Account
Line ltem Affected Amount
No. |(a) (b) (©)
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 216)
1 Balance - Beginning of Year 115,754,623
2 Changes (ldentify by prescribed retained earnings accounts)
3 Adjustments to Retained Earnings (Account 439):
4 Credit:
5 Credit:
6 TOTAL Credits to Retained Earnings (Account 439) (Total of lines 4 and 5)
7 Debit:
8 Debit:
9 TOTAL Debits to Retained Earnings (Account 439) (Total of lines 7 and 8)
10 Balance Transferred from Income (Account 433 less Account 418.1) 48,635,308
11 Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Account 436) TOTAL
12 Dividends Declared - Preferred Stock (Account 437) TOTAL
13 Dividends Declared - Common Stock (Account 438) TOTAL (51,147,701)
14 Transfers from Acct. 216.1, Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings 3,280,081
15 FAS 133 Other Comprehensive Income 24,627
16 Balance - End of Year (Total of lines 01, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15) 116,546,938
APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215)
State balance and purpose of each appropriated retained earnings amount
at end of year and give accounting entries for any applications of appropriated
retained earnings during the year
17
18
19
20
21
22
23 TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215)
TOTAL Retained Earnings (Account 215 and 216) (Total of lines 16 and 23) 116,546,938
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Name of Respondent For the Year Ended

Peoples Gas System Dec. 31, 2020
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON A CONSOLIDATED BASIS

1. Use the space below for important notes regarding the plan of disposition contemplated, giving references to Commission
Balance Sheet, Statement of Income for the year, Statement of  orders or other authorizations respecting classification of amounts
Retained Earnings for the year, and Statement of Changes in as plant adjustments and requirements as to disposition thereof.
Financial Position, or any account thereof. Classify the notes 4. Where Accounts 189, Unamortized Loss on Reacquired
according to each basic statement, providing a subheading Debt, and 257, Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt, are not
for each statement except where a note is applicable to more used, give an explanation, providing the rate treatment given

than one statement. these items. See General Instruction 17 of the Uniform System

2. Furnish particulars (details) as to any significant contingent of Accounts.

assets or liabilities existing at end of year, including a brief 5. Give a concise explanation of any retained earnings restrict-
explanation of any action initiated by the Internal Revenue Service ions and state the amount of retained earnings affected by such
involving possible assessment of additional income taxes of restrictions.

material amount, or of a claim for refund of income taxes of a 6. If the notes to financial statements relating to the respondent
material amount initiated by the utility. Give also a brief explana- company appearing in the annual report to the stockhaolders

tion of any dividends in arrears on cumulative preferred stock. are applicable and furnish the data required by instructions

3. For Account 116, Utility Plant Adjustments, explain the above and on pages 8-10, such notes may be attached hereto.

origin of such amount, debits and credits during the year, and
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DEFINITIONS

Acronyms and defined terms used in this and other filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission include the following:

Term Meaning

AFUDC allowance for funds used during construction

AFUDC-debt debt component of allowance for funds used during construction

AFUDC-equity equity component of allowance for funds used during construction

APBO accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

ARO asset retirement obligation

ASC Accounting Standards Codification

BCF billion cubic feet

CAIR Clean Air Interstate Rule

CCRs coal combustion residuals

CMO collateralized mortgage obligation

CNG compressed natural gas

COa carbon dioxide

COVID-19 coronavirus disease 2019

CPI consumer price index

CSAPR Cross State Air Pollution Rule

CT combustion turbine

ECRC environmental cost recovery clause

Emera Emera Inc., a geographically diverse energy and services company headquartered in Nova Scotia, Canada

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

ERISA Employee Retirement Income Security Act

EROA expected return on plan assets

EUSHI Emera US Holdings Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Emera, which is the sole shareholder of TECO
Energy’s common stock

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

FDEP Florida Department of Environmental Protection

FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

FPSC Florida Public Service Commission

GHG greenhouse gas

IGCC integrated gasification combined-cycle

10U investor owned utility

IRS Internal Revenue Service

ITCs investment tax credits

kWac kilowatt on an alternating current basis

LNG liquefied natural gas

MBS mortgage-backed securities

MD&A the section of this report entitled Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations

Merger Merger of Merger Sub Company with and into TECO Energy, with TECO Energy as the surviving
corporation

MGP manufactured gas plant

MMBTU one million British Thermal Units

MRV market-related value

MW megawatt(s)

MWH megawatt-hour(s)

NAV net asset value

Note Note to consolidated financial statements

NPNS normal purchase normal sale

O&M expenses operations and maintenance expenses

OCI other comprehensive income

orC Office of Public Counsel

OPEB other postemployment benefits

Parent TECO Energy, Inc., the direct parent company of Tampa Electric Company

PBGC Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation

PBO projected benefit obligation
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Term

Meaning

PGA

PGS

PPA

PRP

R&D

REIT

RFP

ROE
Regulatory ROE
S&P

SCR

SEC

SERP
SoBRAs

SPP

STIF

Tampa Electric
TEC

purchased gas adjustment

Peoples Gas System, the gas division of Tampa Electric Company
power purchase agreement

potentially responsible party

research and development

real estate investment trust

request for proposal

retun on common equity

return on common equity as determined for regulatory purposes
Standard and Poor’s

selective catalytic reduction

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

solar base rate adjustments

storm protection plan

short-term investment fund

Tampa Electric, the electric division of Tampa Electric Company
Tampa Electric Company

TECO Energy TECO Energy, Inc., the direct parent company of Tampa Electric Company
TSI TECO Services, Inc.
U.S. GAAP generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting requirements of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published in accounting releases, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
These requirements differ from GAAP related to (1) the presentation of long-term debt, (2) the presentation of deferred income taxes,
(3) the presentation of certain income tax related regulatory assets and liabilities, (4) the presentation of transactions as operating or
non-operating, (5) the presentation of accruals associated with cost of removal included within accumulated depreciation reserve, (6)
the presentation of storm costs including storm and property insurance reserve and corresponding regulatory liability, (7) the
presentation of derivatives, (8) the presentation of plant leased to others under capital leases, and (9) the presentation of current
portions of regulatory assets and liabilities. See Note 18 for additional information.

Tampa Electric Company's (TEC) Notes to the Financial Statements have been combined with People's Gas Systems (PGS)
and are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, certain footnotes are not reflective of
PGS's Financial Statements contained herein.



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Description of the Business

TEC has two operating segments. Its Tampa Electric division provides retail electric services in West Central Florida, and PGS,
its natural gas division, is engaged in the purchase, distribution and sale of natural gas for residential, commercial, industrial and
electric power generation customers in Florida. TEC’s significant accounting policies are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

TEC maintains its accounts in accordance with recognized policies prescribed or permitted by the FPSC and the FERC. These
policies conform with U.S. GAAP in all material respects. The use of estimates is inherent in the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

TEC is a wholly owned subsidiary of TECO Energy, Inc. and contains electric and natural gas divisions. Intercompany balances
and transactions within the divisions have been eliminated in consolidation. TECO Energy is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of
Emera. Therefore, TEC is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Emera.

In 2020, the outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, specifically identified as COVID-19, has resulted in governments
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. While management considered the impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic in TEC’s estimates and results, the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 were not
materially impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, it is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact on the financial results and condition of TEC in future periods.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid, high-quality investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. The
carrying amount of cash equivalents approximated fair market value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, which includes labor, material, applicable taxes, overhead and AFUDC.
Concurrent with a planned major maintenance outage or with new construction, the cost of adding or replacing retirement units-of-
property is capitalized in conformity with the regulations of FERC and FPSC. The cost of maintenance, repairs and replacement of
minor items of property is expensed as incurred.

As regulated utilities, Tampa Electric and PGS must file depreciation and dismantlement studies periodically and receive
approval from the FPSC before implementing new depreciation rates. Included in approved depreciation rates is either an implicit net
salvage factor or a cost of removal factor, expressed as a percentage. The net salvage factor is principally comprised of two
components—a salvage factor and a cost of removal or dismantlement factor. TEC uses current cost of removal or dismantlement
factors as part of the estimation method to approximate the amount of cost of removal in accumulated depreciation. The original cost
of utility plant retired or otherwise disposed of and the cost of removal or dismantlement, less salvage value, is charged to
accumulated depreciation and the accumulated cost of removal reserve reported as a regulatory liability, respectively.

For other property dispositions, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the balance sheet and a gain or loss is
recognized.
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Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following assets:

millions) o Estimated Useful Lives December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Electric generation 21-56 years $ S0 S 5,370
Electric transmission 28-77 years 1,008 940
Electric distribution 14-56 years 2,859 2,732
Gas transmission and distribution 16-77 years 2,076 1,848
General plant and other 8-43 years 723 675
Total cost 12,360 11,565
Less accumulated depreciation (3,712) (3,472)
Construction work in progress 1,472 1,038
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 10,120  § 9,131
Depreciation

The provision for total regulated utility plant in service, expressed as a percentage of the original cost of depreciable property,
was 3.2%, 3.4% and 3.5% for 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Construction work in progress is not depreciated until the asset is
placed in service. Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $381 million, $359 million
and $345 million, respectively. See Note 3 for information regarding agreements approved by the FPSC that, among other things,
allow Tampa Electric to continue to depreciate certain retired assets until the FPSC approves Tampa Electric’s next depreciation and
dismantlement study and allowed Tampa Electric to eliminate its $16 million accumulated amortization reserve surplus for intangible
software assets through a credit to amortization expense in 2020.

Tampa Electric and PGS compute depreciation and amortization using the following methods:

o the group remaining life method, approved by the FPSC, is applied to the average investment, adjusted for anticipated
costs of removal less salvage, in functional classes of depreciable property;

° the amortizable life method, approved by the FPSC, is applied to the net book value to date over the remaining life of
those assets not classified as depreciable property above.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

AFUDC is a non-cash credit to income with a corresponding charge to utility plant which represents the cost of borrowed funds
and a reasonable return on other funds used for construction. Tampa Electric’s FPSC-approved rate used to calculate AFUDC is
revised periodically to reflect significant changes in Tampa Electric’s cost of capital. In 2020, 2019 and 2018, Tampa Electric’s rate
was 6.46%. In July 2019, the FPSC approved a petition filed by PGS for authority to record AFUDC at an annual rate of 5.97% as part
of its plans to develop three expansion projects in 2019 and 2020. Total AFUDC for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018 was $44 million, $16 million and $15 million, respectively. The increase in 2020 is primarily a result of the construction of solar
projects and the repowering of Big Bend Unit 1 with natural gas combined-cycle technology.

Inventory

TEC values materials, supplies and fossil fuel inventory (natural gas, coal, petcoke and oil) using a weighted-average cost
method. These materials, supplies and fuel inventories are carried at the lower of weighted-average cost or net realizable value.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Tampa Electric and PGS are subject to accounting guidance for the effects of certain types of regulation (see Note 3).

Deferred Income Taxes

TEC uses the asset and liability method in the measurement of deferred income taxes. Under the asset and liability method, the
temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities are reported as deferred taxes measured at
enacted tax rates. Tampa Electric and PGS are regulated, and their books and records reflect approved regulatory treatment, including
certain adjustments to accumulated deferred income taxes and the establishment of a corresponding regulatory tax liability reflecting
the amount payable to customers through future rates. See Note 4 for additional details.

11-D



Investment Tax Credits

ITCs have been recorded as deferred credits and are being amortized as reductions to income tax expense over the service lives
of the related property.

Stranded Tax Effects in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

TEC utilizes a portfolio approach to determine the timing and extent to which stranded income tax effects from items that
were previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income are released.

Revenue Recognition
Regulated electric revenue

Electric revenues, including energy charges, demand charges, basic facilities charges and applicable clauses and riders, are
recognized when obligations under the terms of a contract are satisfied. This occurs primarily when electricity is delivered to
customers over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the electricity. Electric revenues are
recognized on an accrual basis and include billed and unbilled revenues. Revenues related to the sale of electricity are recognized at
rates approved by the respective regulator and recorded based on metered usage, which occur on a periodic, systematic basis,
generally monthly. At the end of each reporting period, the electricity delivered to customers, but not billed, is estimated and the
corresponding unbilled revenue is recognized. Tampa Electric’s estimate of unbilled revenue at the end of the reporting period is
calculated by estimating the number of MWH delivered to customers at the established rate expected to prevail in the upcoming
billing cycle. This estimate includes assumptions as to the pattern of energy demand, timing of meter reads and line losses.

Regulated gas revenue

Gas revenues, including energy charges, demand charges, basic facilities charges and applicable clauses and riders, are
recognized when obligations under the terms of a contract are satisfied. This occurs primarily when gas is delivered to customers over
time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the gas. Gas revenues are recognized on an accrual basis
and include billed and unbilled revenues. Revenues related to the distribution and sale of gas are recognized at rates approved by the
regulator and recorded based on metered usage, which occur on a periodic, systematic basis, generally monthly. At the end of each
reporting period, the gas delivered to customers, but not billed, is estimated and the corresponding unbilied revenue is recognized.
PGS’s estimate of unbilled revenue at the end of the reporting period is calculated by estimating the number of therms delivered to
customers at the established rate expected to prevail in the upcoming billing cycle. This estimate includes assumptions as to the
pattern of usage, weather, and inter-period changes to customer classes.

Other

See Accounting for Franchise Fees and Gross Receipts below for the accounting for gross receipts taxes. Sales and other taxes
TEC collects concurrent with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenue.

Revenues and Cost Recovery

Revenues include amounts resulting from cost-recovery clauses which provide for monthly billing charges to reflect increases or
decreases in fuel, purchased power, conservation and environmental costs for Tampa Electric and purchased gas, interstate pipeline
capacity, replacement of cast iron/bare steel pipe and conservation costs for PGS. These adjustment factors are based on costs incurred
and projected for a specific recovery period. Any over- or under-recovery of costs plus an interest factor are taken into account in the
process of setting adjustment factors for subsequent recovery periods. Over-recoveries of costs are recorded as regulatory liabilities,
and under-recoveries of costs are recorded as regulatory assets.

Certain other costs incurred by the regulated utilities are allowed to be recovered from customers through prices approved in the
regulatory process. These costs are recognized as the associated revenues are recognized.

Receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses

Receivables from contracts with customers, which consist of services to residential, commercial, industrial and other customers,
were $214 million and $205 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. An allowance for credit losses is established
based on TEC’s collection experience and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectibility of the reported amount.
Circumstances that impact Tampa Electric’s and PGS’s estimates of credit losses include, but are not limited to, customer credit
issues, fuel prices, customer deposits and general economic conditions, including the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. Accounts
are reserved in the allowance or written off once they are deemed to be uncollectible.
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The regulated utilities accrue base revenues for services rendered but unbilled to provide for matching of revenues and expenses
(see Note 3). As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, unbilled revenues of $73 million and $61 million, respectively, are included in the

“Receivables” line item on TEC’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Accounting for Franchise Fees and Gross Receipts Taxes

Tampa Electric and PGS are allowed to recover certain costs incurred on a dollar-for-dollar basis from customers through rates
approved by the FPSC. The amounts included in customers’ bills for franchise fees and gross receipt taxes are included as revenues on
the Consolidated Statements of Income. Franchise fees and gross receipt taxes payable by Tampa Electric and PGS are included as an
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income in “Taxes, other than income”. These amounts totaled $109 million, $117 million
and $120 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Other deferred credits primarily include accrued pension and other postretirement benefits (see Note 5), MGP environmental
remediation liability (see Note 8), asset retirement obligations (see Note 12), lease liabilities (see Note 13) and a reserve for auto,
general and workers’ compensation liability claims.

TECO Energy and its subsidiaries, including TEC, have a self-insurance program supplemented by excess insurance coverage
for the cost of claims whose ultimate value exceeds the company’s retention amounts. TEC estimates its liabilities for auto, general
and workers’ compensation using discount rates mandated by statute or otherwise deemed appropriate for the circumstances. Discount
rates used in estimating these other self-insurance liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019 ranged from 2.43% to 4.00% and 2.66%
to 4.00%, respectively.

Cash Flows Related to Derivatives and Hedging Activities

TEC classifies cash inflows and outflows related to derivative and hedging instruments in the appropriate cash flow sections
associated with the item being hedged. For natural gas, the cash inflows and outflows are included in the operating section of the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. For interest rate swaps that settle coincident with the debt issuance, the cash inflows and
outflows are treated as premiums or discounts and included in the financing section of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
See Note 14 for further information regarding derivatives.

2. New Accounting Pronouncements
Change in Accounting Policy
The new U.S. GAAP accounting policies that are applicable to, and adopted by TEC in 2020, are described as follows:
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments

TEC adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments
effective January 1, 2020. The standard provides guidance regarding the measurement of credit losses for financial assets and
certain other instruments that are not accounted for at fair value through net income, including trade and other receivables, debt
securities, net investment in leases, and off-balance sheet credit exposures. The new guidance requires companies to replace the
current incurred loss impairment methodology with a methodology that measures all expected credit losses for financial assets
based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. There was no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this standard.

Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. The standard simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by eliminating certain exceptions to the guidance in ASC 740 related to the approach for intraperiod
tax allocation. It also simplifies aspects of accounting for franchise taxes and enacted changes in tax laws or rates and clarifies the
accounting for transactions that result in a step-up in the tax basis of goodwill. The guidance is effective for annual reporting
periods, including interim reporting within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The
standard is applied on both a prospective and retrospective basis. TEC early adopted the standard effective January 1, 2020. There
was no impact on the consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this standard.

Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting
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TEC adopted ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on
Financial Reporting in the fourth quarter of 2020. The standard provides options and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to
contract modifications and hedging relationships that reference LIBOR or another reference rate that is expected to be discontinued.
The guidance was effective as of the date of issuance and entities may elect to apply the guidance prospectively through December
31, 2022, The transition from reference rates will not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. In November
2020, the Federal Reserve extended the phase-out of LIBOR until June 2023. TEC will continue to monitor the impact this may
have on application of the standard.

3. Regulatory

Tampa FElectric’s retail busmess and PGS are regulated separately by the FPSC. Tampa Electric is also subject to regulation by
the FERC in various respects, including wholesale power sales, certain wholesale power purchases, transmission and ancillary
services and accounting practices. The FPSC sets rates based on a cost of service methodology which allows utilities to collect total
revenues (revenue requirements) equal to their prudently incurred cost of providing service or products, plus a reasonable return on
equity invested or assets. As a result, Tampa Flectric and PGS qualify for the application of accounting guidance for certain types of
regulation. This guidance recognizes that the actions of a regulator can provide reasonable assurance of the existence of an asset or
liability. Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of a difference between U.S. GAAP and the accounting principles imposed
by the regulatory authorities. Regulatory assets generally represent incurred costs that have been deferred, as their future recovery in
customer rates is probable. Regulatory liabilities generally represent obligations to make refunds to customers from previous
collections for costs that are not likely to be incurred. In addition to regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities, rate regulation impacts
other financial statement balances and activity, including, but not limited to, property, plant, and equipment, revenues, and expenses.

Tampa Electric Base Rates

Tampa Electric’s results for 2020, 2019 and 2018 reflect an amended and restated settlement agreement, approved by the FPSC
on November 6, 2017, that replaced the previous 2013 base rate settlement agreement and extended it another four years through
2021. The agreement provided for Tampa Electric’s allowed regulatory ROE to be a mid-point of 10.25% with a range of plus or
minus 1%. The agreement stated that Tampa Electric could not file for additional base rate increases to be effective sooner than
December 31, 2021, unless its earned ROE were to fall below 9.25% before that time. If its earned ROE were to rise above 11.25%,
any party to the agreement other than Tampa Electric could seck a review of its base rates. Under the agreement, the allowed equity in
the capital structure is 54% from investor sources of capital. The amended agreement provides for SoBRAs for TEC’s substantial
investments in solar generation. Tampa Electric expects to invest approximately $850 million in these solar projects during the period
from 2017 to 2021, of which approximately $820 million has been invested through December 31, 2020, and is accruing AFUDC
during construction. The agreement includes a sharing provision that allows customers to benefit from 75% of any cost savings for
projects below $1,500/kWac.

On December 12, 2017, TEC filed its first petition regarding the SoBRAs along with supporting tariffs demonstrating the cost-
effectiveness of the September 1, 2018 tranche representing 145 MW and $24 million annually in estimated revenue requirements.
The FPSC approved the tariffs on the first SOBRA filing on May 8, 2018 and TEC began receiving these revenues in September 2018.
On June 29, 2018, TEC filed its second SoBRA petition along with supporting tariffs demonstrating the cost-effectiveness of the
January 1, 2019 tranche representing 260 MW and $46 million annually in estimated revenue requirements. The FPSC approved the
tariffs on the second SoBRA filing on October 29, 2018 and TEC began receiving these revenues in January 2019. On June 28, 2019,
TEC filed its third SoBRA petition along with supporting tariffs demonstrating the cost-effectiveness of the January 1, 2020 tranche
representing 149 MW and $26 million annually in estimated revenue requirements. The FPSC approved the tariffs on this SOBRA
filing, including an adjustment to reflect the reduction in the state corporate income tax discussed below, on December 10, 2019 and
TEC began receiving these revenues in January 2020. On July 31, 2020, TEC filed its fourth and final SOBRA petition along with
supporting tariffs demonstrating the cost-effectiveness of the January 1, 2021 tranche representing 46 MW and $8 million annually in
estimated revenues. The FPSC approved the tariffs on this SoOBRA filing on November 3, 2020 and TEC began receiving these
revenues in January 2021,

The true-up filing for SoBRA tranche 1 and 2 revenue requirement estimates that were included in base rates as of September
2018 and January 2019, respectively, was submitted on April 30, 2020, and the FPSC approved the amount on August 18, 2020. The
$5 million true-up was returned to customers in 2020. The true-ups for SOBRA tranches 3 and 4 will be filed in 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

The 2017 settlement agreement further contains a provision related to tax reform. See “Tampa Electric Storm Restoration
Cost Recovery™ below for information regarding the impact of tax reform. An asset optimization provision that allows Tampa Electric
to share in the savings for optimization of its system once certain thresholds are achieved is also included. Additionally, Tampa
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Electric agreed to a financial hedging moratorium for natural gas ending on December 31, 2022 and that it will make no investments
in gas reserves.

On November 13, 2019, as required by the 2017 settlement agreement, TEC filed its petition to reduce base rates and charges to
reflect the impact of the temporary reduction of the state corporate income tax from 5.5% to 4.5%. The tax rate reduction was issued
on September 12, 2019 and is effective retroactive from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2021. The estimated base rate
reduction due to customers of $5 million is subject to true-up, and the actual rate reduction may vary from year to year. The base rate
reduction was approved on December 10, 2019 for rates effective January 2020.

On February 1, 2021, Tampa Electric notified the FPSC of its intent to seek a base rate increase, reflecting revenue requirements
of approximately $280 million to $295 million, effective in January 2022. Tampa Electric’s proposed 2022 rates include recovery for
the costs of the first phase of the Big Bend modemization project, 225 MW of utility-scale solar projects, the AMI investment, and
accelerated recovery of the remaining net book value of retiring assets. Tampa Electric also intends to seek approval for Generation
Base Rate Adjustments of $130 million to recover the costs of the second phase of the Big Bend modernization project and additional
utility-scale solar projects in subsequent years. These filing amounts are estimates until Tampa Electric completes its analysis and files
the case. Tampa Electric expects to file its detailed case on or after April 2, 2021, and the FPSC is expected to decide the case by the
end of the year.

Tampa Electric Big Bend Power Station

Tampa Electric expects to invest approximately $850 million during 2018 through 2023 to modernize the Big Bend Power
Station, of which approximately $526 million has been invested through December 31, 2020. The Big Bend modernization project
will repower Big Bend Unit 1 with natural gas combined-cycle technology and eliminate coal as this unit’s fuel. As part of the Big
Bend modernization project, on June 1, 2020, Tampa Electric retired the Unit 1 components that will not be used in the modernized
plant. At June 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020, Tampa Electric’s balance sheet included $223 million and $200 million, respectively,
in electric utility plant and $90 million and $88 million, respectively, in accumulated depreciation related to Unit 1 components. In
accordance with Tampa Electric’s 2017 settlement agreement approved by the FPSC, Tampa Electric will continue to account for its
existing investment in Unit 1 in electric utility plant and depreciate the assets using the current depreciation rates until the FPSC
approves Tampa Electric’s next depreciation and dismantlement study. In addition, Tampa Electric plans to retire Big Bend Unit 2 in
2021 as part of the Big Bend modernization project. In accordance with Tampa Electric’s 2017 settlement agreement, Tampa Electric
was not required to request an asset recovery schedule for retired assets until the next depreciation study. On December 30, 2020,
Tampa Electric filed a depreciation and dismantlement study and request for capital recovery schedule with the FPSC.

Tampa Electric plans to retire Big Bend Unit 3 in 2023 as it is in the best interest of customers from economic, environmental
risk and operational perspectives. Similar to the retirement plan for Unit 1 and Unit 2, Tampa Electric will continue to account for its
existing investment in Unit 3 in electric utility plant and depreciate the assets using the current depreciation rates until the FPSC
approves a new Tampa Electric depreciation and dismantlement study.

Tampa Electric Storm Protection Cost Recovery Clause sind Settlement Agreement

On October 3, 2019, the FPSC issued a rule to implement a Storm Protection Plan (SPP) Cost Recovery Clause. This new clause
provides a process for Florida investor-owned utilities, including Tampa Electric, to recover transmission and distribution storm
hardening costs for incremental activities not already included in base rates. Tampa Electric submitted its storm protection plan with
the FPSC on April 10, 2020. On April 27, 2020, Tampa Electric submitted a settlement agreement with the FPSC which specified a
$15 million base rate reduction for SPP program costs previously recovered in base rates beginning January 1, 2021. On June 9, 2020,
the FPSC approved this settlement agreement. On August 3, 2020, Tampa Electric submitted another settlement agreement to the
FPSC for approval, including cost recovery of approximately $39 million in proposed storm protection project costs for 2020 and
2021. This cost recovery includes the $15 million of costs removed from base rates. This settlement agreement was approved on
August 10, 2020 and Tampa Electric’s cost recovery began in January 2021. The current approved plan will apply for the years 2020,
2021 and 2022, and Tampa Electric will file a new plan in 2022 to determine cost recovery in 2023, 2024, and 2025.

The June 9, 2020 settlement agreement approved by the FPSC disclosed above also included approval of Tampa Electric’s
petition to eliminate its $16 million accumulated amortization reserve surplus for intangible software assets through a credit to
depreciation and amortization expense in 2020.

Tampa Electric Storm Restoration Cost Recovery

As aresult of Tampa Electric’s 2013 rate case settlement, in the event of a named storm that results in damage to its system,
Tampa Electric can petition the FPSC to seek recovery of those costs over a 12-month period or longer as determined by the FPSC, as
well as replenish its reserve to $56 million, the level of the reserve as of October 31, 2013. In the third quarter of 2017, Tampa Electric
was impacted by Hurricane Irma and incurred storm restoration costs of approximately $102 million, of which $90 million was
charged to the storm reserve, $3 million was charged to O&M expense and $9 million was charged to capital expenditures. Tampa
Electric petitioned the FPSC on December 28, 2017 for recovery of estimated Hurricane Irma storm costs plus approximately $10
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million in restoration costs from prior named storms and to replenish the balance in the reserve to the $56 million level that existed as
of October 31, 2013.

On March 1, 2018, the FPSC approved a settlement agreement filed by Tampa Electric that addressed both the recovery of
storm costs and the return of tax reform benefits to customers while keeping customer rates stable in 2018. Beginning on April 1,
2018, the agreement authorized Tampa Electric to net the estimated amount of storm cost recovery against Tampa Electric’s estimated
2018 tax reform benefits of $103 million. As a result, during 2018, Tampa Electric recorded O&M expense and a reduction of the
storm reserve regulatory asset of $47 million and O&M expense and an increase in the storm reserve regulatory liability of $56
million to reflect effective recovery of the storm costs due to the allowed netting of storm cost recovery with tax reform benefits. On
August 20, 2018, the FPSC approved lowering base rates by $103 million annually beginning on January 1, 2019 as a result of lower
tax expense.

On April 9, 2019, Tampa Electric reached a settlement agreement with consumer parties regarding eligible storm costs, which
was approved by the FPSC on May 21, 2019. As a result, Tampa Electric refunded $12 million to customers in January 2020, resulting
in minimal impact to the Consolidated Statements of Income.

In 2019, Tampa Electric incurred storm restoration preparation costs for Hurricane Dorian of approximately $8 million, which
was charged to the storm reserve regulatory liability.

PGS Base Rates

PGS’s base rates for 2020, 2019 and 2018 were originally established in May 2009. The allowed equity in its capital structure
was 54.7% from all investor sources of capital.

On February 7, 2017, the FPSC approved a settlement agreement filed by PGS and the OPC agreeing to new depreciation rates,
accelerate the amortization of the regulatory asset associated with environmental remediation costs as described below, include
obsolete plastic pipe replacements through the existing cast iron and bare steel replacement rider, and establish an ROE range of
9.25% to 11.75%. The settlement agreement provided that the bottom of the range will remain until the earlier of new base rates '
established in PGS’s next general base rate proceeding or December 31, 2020 and the ROE of 10.75% will continue to be used for the
calculation of return on investment for clauses and riders.

As part of the 2017 settlement, PGS and the OPC agreed that at least $32 million of PGS’s regulatory asset associated with the
environmental liability for current and future remediation costs related to former MGP sites, to the extent expenses are reasonably and
prudently incurred, will be amortized over the period 2016 through 2020. At least $21 million of that amount will be amortized over a
two-year recovery period beginning in 2016. In 2017 and 2016, PGS recorded $5 million and $16 million, respectively, of this
amortization expense.

In 2018, the FPSC approved a settlement agreement authorizing PGS to accelerate in 2018 the remaining amortization of PGS’s
regulatory asset associated with the MGP environmental liability up to the $32 million to net it against the estimated 2018 tax reform
benefits. Therefore, PGS recorded amortization expense and a regulatory asset reduction of $11 million in 2018. In January 2019, PGS
reduced its base rates by $12 million for the impact of tax reform and reduced depreciation rates by $10 million in accordance with the
settlement agreement.

PGS was permitted to initiate a general base rate proceeding during 2020 regardless of its earned ROE at the time, provided
the new rates do not become effective before January 1, 2021. On June 8, 2020, PGS filed a petition for an increase in rates and
service charges effective January 2021. On November 19, 2020, the FPSC approved a settlement agreement filed by PGS. The
settlement agreement allows for an increase in base rates by $58 million annually effective January 2021, which is a $34 million
increase in revenue and $24 million increase of revenues previously recovered through the cast iron and bare steel replacement
rider. This settlement agreement includes an allowed regulatory ROE range of 8.90% to 11.00% with a 9.90% midpoint. It provides
PGS the ability to reverse a total of $34 million of accumulated depreciation through 2023 and sets new depreciation rates going
into effect January 1, 2021 that are consistent with PGS’s current overall average depreciation rate. Under the agreement, base
rates are frozen from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2023, unless its earned ROE were to fall below 8.90% before that time with
an allowed equity in the capital structure of 54.7% from investor sources of capital. The settlement agreement further addresses tax
rate changes. The agreement contains a provision whereby PGS agrees to quantify the future impact of a decrease in tax rates on
net operating income through a reduction in base revenues within 120 days of when such tax change becomes law. If on the
contrary, tax legislation results in a tax rate increase, PGS can establish a regulatory asset to neutralize the impact of the increase in
income tax rate to be addressed in a future proceeding and with recovery beginning no sooner than lanuary 2024.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Details of the regulatory assets and liabilities are presented in the following table:

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

December 31, December 31,

(millions) 2020 2019

Regulatory assets:

Regulatory tax asset (¥ $ 9 $ 74
Cost-recovery clauses 38 12
Environmental remediation ©*! 22 20
Postretirement benefits 309 295
Asset retirement obligation & 13 25
Other g 13 11

Total regulatory assets 485 437

Less: Current portion 7O 41

Long-term regulatory assets $ 406 S 396

Regulatory liabilities:

Regulatory tax liability © $ 691 § 699
Cost-recovery clauses ¥ 23 37
Accumulated reserve—cost of removal /! 498 506
Storm reserve 48 48
Other o 1 o 13

Total regulatory liabilities 1.261 1,303

Less: Current portion 67 93

Long-term regulatory habilities S 1,194 § 1,210

(1) Theregulatory tax asset is primarily associated with the depreciation and recovery of AFUDC-equity. This asset does not eamn a
return but rather is included in the capital structure, which is used in the calculation of the weighted cost of capital used to
determine revenue requirements. It will be recovered over the expected life of the related assets. The regulatory tax asset
balance reflects the impact of the federal tax rate reduction.

(2) These assets and liabilities are related to FPSC clauses and riders. They are recovered or refunded through cost-recovery
mechanisms approved by the FPSC on a dollar-for-dollar basis in a subsequent period.

(3) This asset is related to costs associated with environmental remediation primarily at MGP sites. The balance is included in rate
base, partially offsetting the related liability, and earns a rate of return as permitted by the FPSC. The timing of recovery is
based on a settlement agreement approved by the FPSC.

(4)  This asset is related to the deferred costs of postretirement benefits and it is amortized over the remaining service life of plan
participants. Deferred costs of postretirement benefits that are included in expense are recognized as cost of service for rate-
making purposes as permitted by the FPSC.

(5)  This asset is related to costs associated with an asset retirement obligation, which is a legal obligation for the future retirement
of certain tangible, long-lived assets. This regulatory asset does not earn a return because it is offset with related assets and
liabilities within rate base. It is recovered and removed as the obligation is settled and removed as the activities for the
retirement of the related assets have been completed.

(6) The regulatory tax liability is primarily related to the revaluation of TEC’s deferred income tax balances recorded on December
31,2017 at the lower income tax rate due to U.S. tax reform. The liability related to the revaluation of the deferred income tax
balances 1s amortized and returned to customers through rate reductions or other revenue offsets based on IRS regulations and
the settlement agreement for tax reform benefits approved by the FPSC.

(7)  This item represents the non-ARQ cost of removal in the accumulated reserve for depreciation. AROs are costs for legally
required removal of property, plant and equipment. Non-ARO cost of removal represents estimated funds received from
customers through depreciation rates to cover future non-legally required cost of removal of property, plant and equipment, net
of salvage value upon retirement, which reduces rate base for ratemaking purposes. This liability is reduced as costs of removal
are incurred.

(8) See“Tampa Electric Storm Restoration Cost Recovery” discussion above for information regarding this reserve.
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4. Income Taxes
CARES Act

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act (the Act) was signed into law. The Act
includes several business provisions including deferral in employer payroll taxes and an employee retention payroll tax credit. On
December 27, 2020, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (the 2021 Act) was signed into law. The 2021 Act provides for
modifications and expansion of the employee retention payroll tax credit enacted under the CARES Act. The 2021 Act also extends
the solar ITC for two years. These Acts did not have a material impact to TEC’s financial statements.

FERC Consideration of the TCJA and State Tax Rate Change

On November 15th, FERC issued a policy statement, Docket No. PL19-2-000, requiring companies to disclose the following items related
to the accounting and rate treatment of excess and deficient Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (ADIT) that resulted from the U.S.
Federal Income Tax rate change from 35% to 21%, as enacted by the TCJA on December 22, 2017 and made effective January 1, 2018.

On September 12, 2019, the state of Florida issued a corporate tax rate reduction from 5.5% to 4.46% effective January 1, 2019 through
December 31, 2021.

Peoples Gas System remeasured all federal and state ADIT balances in accounts 190, 282 and 283 at December 31, 2017 and September
30, 2019, respectively and recorded the excess deferred taxes in account 282 and its corresponding gross-up to account 283. As the excess
ADIT reverse through the amortization periods shown in the table below, the regulatory liability will reverse with an offset to the income
statement account 411.1 - provision for deferred income taxes — credit. The liability related to the revaluation of the deferred income tax
balances will be amortized and returned to customers through rate reductions or other revenue offsets based on IRS regulations and a
settlement agreement for the tax reform benefits approved by the FPSC.

The accounts that increased and (decreased) due to the remeasurement of accumulated deferred income taxes as a result of the decrease
in the federal and state income tax rates are reflected below.

(millions)
254 282 283
g 93 § (70) 8 (24)

The estimated amortization period based on FPSC, IRS regulations, and the account that the amortization will be reported is

reflected below:
(millions) ' Debit/(Credit)
As of December 31, 2020 2019 411.1 Amortization Period
Protected $ 83 S 85 $ 2) Estimated 41 years under ARAM
Unprotected - Federal (14) (16) 2 10 years per FPSC
Unprotected - State 1 1 B 2 years per FPSC beginning in 2021
3 70 $ 70 $ 0

In the table above, ARAM refers to the Average Rate Assumption Method.
Prior year beginning balance did not include the Unprotected State Amortization balance.

Income Tax Expense

TEC is included in a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return with EUSHI and its subsidiaries. TEC’s income tax expense is
based upon a separate return method, modified for the benefits-for-loss allocation in accordance with respective tax sharing
agreements of TECO Energy and EUSHI. To the extent that TEC’s cash tax positions are settled differently than the amount reported
as realized under the tax sharing agreement, the difference is accounted for as either a capital contribution or a distribution.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, TEC recorded net tax provisions of $82 million, $77 million and $81 million, respectively.
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Income tax expense consists of the following components:

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

(millions)
For the vear ended December 31,
Current income taxes
Federal
State
Deferred income taxes
Federal
State
Investment tax credits amortization
Total income tax expense

For the three years presented, the overall effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate as presented below:

Effective Income Tax Rate

(millions)
For the year ended December 31,
Income before provision for income taxes
Federal statutory income tax rates
Income taxes, at statutory income tax rate
Increase (decrease) due to
State income tax, net of federal income tax
Excess deferred tax amortization
ITC amortization
AFUDC-equity
Tax credits
Other
Total income tax expense on consolidated statements of income

Income tax expense as a percent of income before income taxes

Deferred Income Taxes

2020 2019 2018
$ 35 % 56 % 72
(7) 6 10
32 7 (13)
29 13 13
8 (7) (5) (1)
$ 82 % 77 % 81
2020 2019 2018
S 506 S 447 S 422
21% 21% 21%
106 94 89
17 15 19
(26) (25) (24)
(7) 5) (1)
(6) ) (2)
(8) (1) (2
6 1 2
S 82 S 7. 5 81
16.2% 17.2% 19.2%

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of certain liabilities or assets for tax and financial reporting
purposes. The principal components of TEC’s deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

(millions)
4s of December 31,
Deferred tax liabilities '
Property related
Pension and postretirement benefits
Total deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets (¥
Loss and credit carryforwards @
Medical benefits
Insurance reserves
Pension and postretirement benefits
Capitalized energy conservation assistance costs
Other
Total deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax liability, net

(1) Certain property related assets and liabilities have been netted.
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2020

$ 1,121
116
1,237

301
27
16
66
18
26

454

783

r,r_-|

2019

1,036
111
1,147

243
27
16
63
17
23

389

758




(2) Deferred tax assets for net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards have been reduced by unrecognized tax benefits of $9
million,

At December 31, 2020, TEC had cumulative unused federal and Florida NOLs for income tax purposes of $340 million and $88
million, respectively, expiring between 2032 and 2037. TEC has unused general business credits of $242 million expiring between
2027 and 2040, of which $222 million relate to ITCs expiring between 2034 and 2040, As a result of the Merger with Emera, TECs
NOLs and credits will be utilized by EUSHI, in accordance with the benefits-for-loss allocation which provide that tax attributes are
utilized by the consolidated tax return group of EUSHI.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

TEC accounts for uncertain tax positions as required by U.S. GAAP. This guidance addresses the determination of whether tax
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Authoritative guidance
related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes requires an enterprise to recognize in its financial statements the best estimate of
the impact of a tax position by determining if the weight of the available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not, based solely
on the technical merits, that the position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals and litigation
processes.

The following table provides details of the change in unrecognized tax benefits as follows:
(millions) N 2020 2019 2018
Balance at January 1, 5
Decreases due to tax positions related to prior year
Increases due to tax positions related to prior year
Increases due to tax positions related to current year

Balance at December 31, g

o = O

—_

= =N O
~

CKI'OG:'OW

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, TEC’s uncertain tax positions for federal R&D tax credits were $9 million, all of which
was recorded as a reduction of deferred income tax assets for tax credit carryforwards. TEC’s unrecognized federal tax benefits
decreased in the fourth quarter of 2020 by approximately $2 million due to an adjustment related to its 2016 federal R&D credits issue
with IRS Appeals. The recognition of these tax benefits decreased the effective tax rate resulting in an income tax benefit of

approximately $2 million. TEC expects to be effectively settled with this issue early 2021. TEC had $9 million of unrecognized tax
benefits at December 31, 2020 and 2019 that, if recognized, would reduce TEC’s effective tax rate.

TEC recognizes interest accruals related to uncertain tax positions in “Other income™ or “Interest expense”, as applicable, and
penalties in “Operation and maintenance expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. In 2020, 2019 and 2018, TEC did not
recognize any pre-tax charges (benefits) for interest. Additionally, TEC did not have any accrued interest or amounts recorded for

penalties at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

The short tax year ending June 30, 2016 is currently under examination by the IRS under its Compliance Assurance Program
(CAP). EUSHI’s 2016 consolidated federal income tax return, which includes TEC’s short tax year ending December 31, 2016, is also
currently under examination by the IRS. The U.S. federal statute of limitations remains open for the year 2016 and forward. Florida’s
statute of limitations is three years from the filing of an income tax return. The state impact of any federal changes remains subject to
examination by various states for a period of up to one year after formal notification to the states. Years still open to examination by
Florida’s tax authorities include 2005 and forward as a result of TECO Energy’s consolidated Florida net operating loss still being
utilized.

5. Employee Postretirement Benefits
Pension Benefits

TEC is a participant in the comprehensive retirement plans of TECO Energy, including a qualified, non-contributory defined
benefit retirement plan that covers substantially all employees. Benefits are based on the employees’ age, years of service and final
average earnings. Where appropriate and reasonably determinable, the portion of expenses, income, gains or losses allocable to TEC
are presented. Otherwise, such amounts presented reflect the amount allocable to all participants of the TECO Energy retirement
plans.

Amounts disclosed for pension benefits in the following tables and discussion also include the fully-funded obligations for the
SERP and the unfunded obligations of the Restoration Plan. The SERP is a non-qualified, non-contributory defined benefit retirement
plan available to certain members of senior management. The Restoration Plan is a non-qualified, non-contributory defined benefit
retirement plan that allows certain members of senior management to receive contributions as if no IRS limits were in place.
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Effective October 21, 2019, the defined benefit retirement plan was amended to freeze further crediting of service and earnings
for certain participants covered by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (the IBEW) collective bargaining agreement.
As of December 31, 2019, 24% of TEC’s employees were represented by the IBEW. As a result, a curtailment and a remeasurement
of the plan occurred in the fourth quarter of 2019. See curtailment-related line items in tables below.

As the result of a reorganization of shared services functions, certain employees and their associated pension benefits were
transferred from TSI to TEC effective December 2019. Deferred costs related to pension benefits that were recognized by TSI in
AOCI are now recognized in TEC as regulatory assets. The balances at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are reflective of this transfer.

Other Postretirement Benefits

TECO Energy and its subsidiaries currently provide certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits (other benefits)
for most employees retiring after age 50 meeting certain service requirements. Where appropriate and reasonably determinable, the
portion of expenses, income, gains or losses allocable to TEC are presented. Otherwise, such amounts presented reflect the amount
allocable to all participants of the TECO Energy postretirement health care and life insurance plans. Postretirement benefit levels are
substantially unrelated to salary. TECO Energy reserves the right to terminate or modify the plans in whole or in part at any time.

As the result of a reorganization of shared services functions, certain employees and their associated other postretirement
benefits were transferred from TSI to TEC effective December 2019. Deferred costs related to other postretirement benefits that were
recognized by TSI in AOCIT are now recognized in TEC as regulatory assets. The balances at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are
reflective of this transfer.

Obligations and Funded Status

TEC recognizes in its statement of financial position the over-funded or under-funded status of its allocated portion of TECO
Energy’s postretirement benefit plans. This status is measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the PBO in
the case of its defined benefit plan, or the APBO in the case of its other postretirement benefit plan. Changes in the funded status are
reflected, net of estimated tax benefits, in benefit liabilities and regulatory assets. The results of operations are not impacted.

The following table provides a detail of the change in TECO Energy’s benefit obligations and change in plan assets for
combined pension plans (pension benefits) and TECO Energy’s Florida-based other postretirement benefit plan (other benefits).

TECO Energy Pension Benefits Other Benefits @
Obligations and Funded Status

(millions) 2020 2019 2020 2019
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year § 843 % 750 § 180 % 173
Service cost 20 20 2 1
Interest cost 26 31 6 7
Plan participants’ contributions 0 0 4 4
Plan curtailment 0 (10) 0 0
Plan settlement 0 (5) 0 0
Benefits paid (54) (49) a7 (14)
Actuarial loss ¥ 84 106 37 9
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 919 § 843 $ 212§ 180
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 79 § 659 $ 0 3 0
Actual return on plan assets 142 165 0 0
Employer contributions 19 20 0 0
Employer direct benefit payments 1 6 13 10
Plan participants’ contributions 0 0 4 4
Plan settlement 0 (5) 0 0
Benefits paid (54) (48) 0 0
Direct benefit payments (1) (1) Al S (14)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ) 5 903 $ 7% § 0 8 0

(1) The MRV of plan assets is used as the basis for calculating the EROA component of periodic pension expense. MRV reflects
the fair value of plan assets adjusted for experience gains and losses (i.e. the differences between actual investment returns and
expected returns) spread over five years.

(2) Represent amounts for TECO Energy’s Florida-based other postretirement benefit plan.
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Gains in the benefit obligation for the year ended December 31, 2020 relate to decreases in the discount rate used to calculate
the benefit obligation, the incorporation of new census data as of January 1, 2020 and the updating of the withdrawal, retirement rate
and form of payment assumptions as the result of an experience study performed during the year. In addition, participation and
persistency assumptions were updated for the other postretirement benefit plan.

At December 31, the aggregate financial position for TECO Energy pension plans and Florida-based other postretirement plans
with projected benefit obligations and accumulated projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets was as follows:

TECO Energy - Pension Benefits - Other Benefits ¥
Funded Status

(millions) 2020 2019 2020 2019
Benefit obligation (PBO/APBO) $ 919  § 843 § o P 180
Less: Fair value of plan assets 903 796 1 0 _
Funded status at end of year $ (16) § 47) S (212)  § (180)

(1) Represent amounts for TECO Energy’s Florida-based other postretirement benefit plan.

The accumulated benefit obligation for TECO Energy consolidated defined benefit pension plans was $876 million at December
31, 2020 and $801 million at December 31, 2019.

The amounts recognized in TEC’s Consolidated Balance Sheets for pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and
plan assets at December 31 were as follows:

TEC Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Amounts recognized in balance sheet

(millions) B 2020 2019 2020 2019

Accrued benefit costs and other current liabilities $ (1) $ (1) $ (12) $ an

Deferred credits and other liabilities (15) (42) (186) (156)
s (d6) $ (43) S (198) § (167)

Unrecognized gains and losses and prior service credits and costs are recorded in regulatory assets for TEC. The following table
provides a detail of the unrecognized gains and losses and prior service credits and costs.

TEC Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Amounts recognized in regulatory assets

(millions - 2020 2019 2020 2019

Net actuarial loss (gain) $ =S 244§ P T, |
“Amount recognized 3 221 5 244 S - 88 S 51

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2020 2019 2020 2019
Discount rate 2.37% 3.21% 2.47% 3.32%
Rate of compensation increase 3.07% 3.79% 3.07% 3.79%
Healthcare cost trend rate
Immediate rate n/a n/a 5.74% 6.03%
Ultimate rate n/a n/a 4.50% 4.50%
Year rate reaches ultimate n/a n/a 2038 2038
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The discount rate assumption used to determine the December 31, 2020 and 2019 benefit obligation was based on a cash flow
matching technique that matches yields from high-quality (AA-rated, non-callable) corporate bonds to TECO Energy’s projected cash
flows for the plans to develop a present value that is converted to a discount rate assumption.

Amounts recognized in Net Periodic Benefit Cost, OCI and Regulatory Assets

TECO Energy ~ Pension Benefits Other Benefits ®
- 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
(millions)
Service cost $ 20 S 20 $ 21 $ 2 8 1 $ 2
Interest cost 26 31 29 6 7 7
Expected return on plan assets (50) 1) (49) 0 0 0
Amortization of:
Actuarial loss 20 16 19 1 1 1
Prior service (benefit) cost 0 0 0 3) ) 2)
Settlement loss 0 1 @ 2 @ 0 0 0
Net periodic benefit cost ) 16 S 17 g 2 $ 6 S 7 8 8

Net loss (gain) arising during the year (includes
curtailment gain) S 8) S (17) S 62 $ 38 § 9 5 (14)
Amounts recognized as component of net periodic
benefit cost:
Amortization or curtailment recognition of prior
service (benefit) cost 0 0 0 2 o 2
Amortization or settlement of actuarial loss (20) (17) (20) (1) 1) (1)
Total recognized in OCT and regulatory assets S (28) S 34) S 42 5 39 /& 10 § (13)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost, OCI
and regulatory assets $ (12) § a7y s 64 § 45 § 17§ (5)

(1) Represents amounts for TECO Energy’s Florida-based other postretirement benefit plan

(2) Represents TECO Energy’s SERP settlement charge as a result of retirements that occurred subsequent to the Merger with
Emera. The charge did not impact TEC's financial statements.

(3) Represents TECO Energy’s SERP and Restoration settlement charges as a result of the retirement of certain executives. These
charges did impact TEC's financial statements.

TEC's portion of the net periodic benefit costs for pension benefits was $12 million, $12 million and $16 million for 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively. TEC's portion of the net periodic benefit costs for other benefits was $7 million, $7 million and $8 million for
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. TEC's portion of net periodic benefit costs for pension and other benefits is included as an
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income in “Operations & maintenance”.

TEC recognized a settlement charge of $1 million in 2018 relating to the retirement of an executive in the SERP plan. TEC
recognized a settlement charge of approximately $1 million in 2019 related to the retirement of a SERP participant. TEC recognized
settlement charges of approximately $1 million in 2019 related to the retirement of Restoration plan participants.
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Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
Discount rate 3.21% 4.33% 3.62% 3.32% 4.38% 3.70%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.00% 7.35%/7.00% O 6.85% n/a n/a n/a
Rate of compensation increase 3.79% 3.75% 3.32% 3.79% 3.75% 3.31%
Healthcare cost trend rate
Initial rate n/a n/a n/a 6.03% 6.31% 6.58%
Ultimate rate n/a n/a n/a 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Year rate reaches ultimate n/a n/a n/a 2038 2038 2038

(1) The expected return on assets was 7.35% as of January 1, 2019 and 7.00% as of October 31, 2019 when a plan remeasurement
occurred as a result of a plan curtailment.

The discount rate assumption used to determine the benefit cost for 2020, 2019 and 2018 was based on the same technique that
was used to determine the December 31, 2020 and 2019 benefit obligation as discussed above.

The expected return on assets assumption was based on historical returns, fixed income spreads and equity premiums consistent
with the portfolio and asset allocation. A change in asset allocations could have a significant impact on the expected return on assets.
Additionally, expectations of long-term inflation, real growth in the economy and a provision for active management and expenses
paid were incorporated in the assumption. For the year ended December 31, 2020, TECO Energy’s pension plan’s actual earned
returns were approximately 19%.

The compensation increase assumption was based on the same underlying expectation of long-term inflation together with
assumptions regarding real growth in wages and company-specific merit and promotion increases.

Pension Plan Assets

Pension plan assets (plan assets) are invested in a mix of equity and fixed income securities. TECO Energy’s investment
objective is to obtain above-average returns while minimizing volatility of expected returns and funding requirements over the long
term. TECO Energy’s strategy is to hire proven managers and allocate assets to reflect a mix of investment styles, emphasize
preservation of principal to minimize the impact of declining markets, and stay fully invested except for cash to meet benefit payment
obligations and plan expenses.

TECO Energy Actual Allocation, End of Year
2020 2019
Asset Category Target Target
B Allocation  Allocation 2020 2019
Equity securities 50%-70% 57%-63% 60% 58%
Fixed income securities 30%-50%  37%-43% 40% 42%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

TECO Energy reviews the plan’s asset allocation periodically and re-balances the investment mix to maximize asset returns,
optimize the matching of investment yields with the plan’s expected benefit obligations, and minimize pension cost and funding.
TECO Energy expects to take additional steps to more closely match plan assets with plan liabilities over the long term.

The plan’s investments are held by a trust fund administered by The Bank of New York Mellon. Investments are valued using
quoted market prices on an exchange when available. Such investments are classified Level 1. In some cases where a market exchange
price is available but the investments are traded in a secondary market, acceptable practical expedients are used to calculate fair value.

If observable transactions and other market data are not available, fair value is based upon third-party developed models that
use, when available, current market-based or independently-sourced market parameters such as interest rates, currency rates or option
volatilities. [tems valued using third-party generated models are classified according to the lowest level input or value driver that is
most significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be classified in Level 3 even though there may be significant inputs that are
readily observable.
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As required by the fair value accounting standards, the investments are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The plan’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair
value hierarchy levels. For cash equivalents, the cost approach was used in determining fair value. For bonds and U.S. government
agencies, the income approach was used. For other investments, the market approach was used. The following table sets forth by level
within the fair value hierarchy the plan’s investments.

Pension Plan Investments

TECO Energy At Fair Value as of December 31, 2020
(millions) - - B -

~ Levell Level 2 ~Level3 Using NAV ® Total
Cash 5 9 5 0 8 0 3 0 3 9
Accounts receivable 10 0 0 0 10
Accounts payable (88) 0 0 0 (88)
Short-term investment funds (STIFs) 35 0 0 ] 35
Common stocks 66 0 0 0 66
Real estate investment trusts (REITs) 8 0 0 0 8
Mutual funds 69 0 0 0 69
Municipal bonds 0 l ] 0 1
Government bonds 0 90 0 0 90
Corporate bonds 0 79 0 0 79
Mortgage backed securities (MBS) 0 1 0 0 1
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 0 | 0 0 1
Short Sales 0 4) 0 0 4)
Long Futures (2) 0 0 0 2)
Swaps 0 1 0 0 1
Investments not utilizing the practical
expedient 107 169 0 0 276
Common and collective trusts (V 0 0 0 553 553
Mutual fund 0 0 0 74 74
Total investments ) 107 § 169 S 0 3 627 § 903

(1) In accordance with accounting standards, certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share
practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts in this table are to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to amounts presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of TECO Energy.

11-R



TECO Energy At Fair Value as of December 31, 2019

(millions) — — =

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Using NAV © Total
Cash $ 7 3 0 $ 0 0 8 7
Accounts receivable 27 0 0 0 27
Accounts payable (64) 0 0 0 (64)
Cash collateral I 0 0 0 ]
Short-term investment funds (STIFs) 22 0 0 0 22
Common stocks 50 0 0 0 50
Real estate investment trusts (REITS) 4 0 0 0 4
Mutual funds 153 0 0 0 153
Municipal bonds 0 0 0 1
Government bonds 0 51 0 0 51
Corporate bonds 0 70 0 0 70
Mortgage backed securities (MBS) 0 5 0 0 5
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 0 2 0 0 2
Long Futures 4) 0 0 0 4)
Swaps 0 1 0 0 1
Investments not utilizing the practical '
expedient 196 130 0 0 326
Common and collective trusts ) 0 0 0 412 412
Mutual fund 0 0 0 38 58
Total investments S 196 S 130 S 0 % 470 S 796

(1) In accordance with accounting standards, certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share
practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts in this table are to permit

reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to amounts presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of TECO Energy.

The following list details the pricing inputs and methodologies used to value the investments in the pension plan:

Cash collateral is valued at cash posted due to its short-term nature.

The STIF is valued at net asset value (NAV). The fund is an open-end investment, resulting in a readily-determinable fair
value. Additionally, shares may be redeemed any business day at the NAV calculated after the order is accepted. The NAV is
validated with purchases and sales at NAV. These factors make the STIF a level 1 asset.

The primary pricing inputs in determining the fair value of the Common stocks and REITs are closing quoted prices in active
markets.

The primary pricing inputs in determining the level 1 mutual funds are the mutual funds’ NAVs. The funds are registered
open-end mutual funds and the NAVs are validated with purchases and sales at NAV. Since the fair values are determined
and published, they are considered readily-determinable fair values and therefore Level 1 assets.

The primary pricing inputs in determining the fair value of Municipal bonds are benchmark yields, historical spreads, sector
curves, rating updates, and prepayment schedules. The primary pricing inputs in determining the fair value of Government
bonds are the U.S. treasury curve, CPI, and broker quotes, if available. The primary pricing inputs in determining the fair
value of Corporate bonds are the U.S. treasury curve, base spreads, YTM, and benchmark quotes. CMOs are priced using to-
be-announced (TBA) prices, treasury curves, swap curves, cash flow information, and bids and offers as inputs. MBS are
priced using TBA prices, treasury curves, average lives, spreads, and cash flow information.

e Swaps are valued using benchmark yields, swap curves, and cash flow analyses.
e Options are valued using the bid-ask spread and the last price.
e The primary pricing input in determining the fair value of the mutual fund utilizing the practical expedient is its NAV. Tt is an

unregistered open-end mutual fund. The fund holds primarily corporate bonds, debt securities and other similar instruments
issued by U.S. and non-U.S. public- or private-sector entities. The fund may purchase or sell securities on a when-issued
basis. These transactions are made conditionally because a security has not yet been issued in the market, although it is
authorized. A commitment is made regarding these transactions to purchase or sell securities for a predetermined price or
yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the customary settlement period. Since this mutual fund is an open-end
mutual fund and the prices are not published to an external source, it uses NAV as a practical expedient. The redemption
frequency is daily. The redemption notice period is the same day. There were no unfunded commitments as of December 31,
2020.

® The common collective trusts are private funds valued at NAV. The NAVs are calculated based on bid prices of the

underlying securities. Since the prices are not published to external sources, NAV is used as a practical expedient. Certain
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funds invest primarily in equity securities of domestic and foreign issuers while others invest in long duration U.S.
investment-grade fixed income assets and seeks to increase return through active management of interest rate and credit risks.
The redemption frequency of the funds ranges from daily to weekly and the redemption notice period ranges from 1 business
day to 30 business days. There were no unfunded commitments as of December 31, 2020,

e Treasury bills are valued using benchmark yields, reported trades, broker dealer quotes, and benchmark securities.

® Futures are valued using futures data, cash rate data, swap rates, and cash flow analyses.

Additionally, the non-qualified SERP had $10 million and $10 million of assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Since the plan is non-qualified, its assets are included in the “Deferred charges and other assets™ line item in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets rather than being netted with the related liability. The non-qualified trust holds investments in a money market fund. The fund
is an open-end investment, resulting in a readily-determinable fair value. Additionally, shares may be redeemed any business day at
the NAV calculated after the order is accepted. The NAYV is validated with purchases and sales at NAV. These factors make it a level
1 asset. The SERP was fully funded as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Other Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets

There are no assets associated with TECO Energy’s Florida-based other postretirement benefits plan.

Contributions

The qualified pension plan’s actuarial value of assets, including credit balance, was 111.66% of the Pension Protection Act
funded target as of January 1, 2020 and is estimated at 109.67% of the Pension Protection Act funded target as of January 1, 2021.

TECO Energy’s policy is to fund the qualified pension plan at or above amounts determined by its actuaries to meet ERISA
guidelines for minimum annual contributions and minimize PBGC premiums paid by the plan. TEC’s contribution is first set equal to
its service cost. [f a contribution in excess of service cost for the year is made, TEC’s portion is based on TEC’s proportion of the
TECO Energy unfunded liability. TECO Energy made contributions to this plan in 2020, 2019 and 2018, which met the minimum
funding requirements for 2020, 2019 and 2018. TEC’s portion of the contribution in 2020 was $16 million and in 2019 was $15
million. These amounts are reflected in the “Other” line on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. TEC estimates its portion of
the 2021 contribution to be $17 million. The amount TECO Energy expects to contribute is in excess of the minimum funding
required under ERISA guidelines.

TEC’s portion of the contributions to the SERP in 2020, 2019 and 2018 was zero. Since the SERP is fully funded, TECO
Energy does not expect to make significant contributions to this plan in 2021. TEC made SERP payments of approximately $1 million
and $5 million from the trust in 2020 and 2019, respectively, and expects to make a SERP payment of approximately $1 million from
the trust in 2021.

The other postretirement benefits are funded annually to meet benefit obligations. TECO Energy’s contribution toward health
care coverage for most employees who retired after the age of 55 between January 1, 1990 and June 30, 2001 is limited to a defined
dollar benefit based on service. TECO Energy’s contribution toward pre-65 and post-65 health care coverage for most employees
retiring on or after July 1, 2001 is limited to a defined dollar benefit based on an age and service schedule. In 2021, TEC expects to
make a contribution of about $12 million. Postretirement benefit levels are substantially unrelated to salary.

Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Expected Benefit Payments

TECO Energy Other
(including projected service and net of employee contributions) Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
(millions) B B - a
2021 $ 58 8§ 13
2022 66 13
2023 62 13
2024 64 13
2025 66 13
2026-2030 331 61
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Defined Contribution Plan

TECO Energy has a defined contribution savings plan covering substantially all employees of TECO Energy and its subsidiaries
that enables participants to save a portion of their compensation up to the limits allowed by IRS guidelines. TECO Energy and its
subsidiaries match 75% of the first 6% of the participant’s payroll savings deductions. Effective January 1, 2017, the employer
matching contributions increased from 70% to 75% with an additional incentive match of up to 25% of eligible participant
contributions based on the achievement of certain operating company financial goals. For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018, TEC’s portion of expense totaled $21 million, $11 million and $11 million, respectively, related to the matching
contributions made to this plan. TEC's portion of the expense related to the matching contribution is included on the Consolidated
Statements of Income in “Operations & maintenance”.

Effective October 21, 2019, TECO Energy amended the defined contribution plan such that certain participants covered by the
IBEW collective bargaining agreement shall not be eligible to participate in the plan for purposes of receiving the fixed matching
contribution. This has been replaced with a non-elective employer contribution on a bi-weekly basis equal to a percentage of the
member’s compensation for that period based on years of tenure of employment. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
TEC recognized expense totaling $9 million and $1 million, respectively, related to the contributions made to this plan. TEC's portion
of the expense related to this contribution is included on the Consolidated Statements of Income in “Operations & maintenance”.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic could impact key actuarial assumptions used to account for employee postretirement benefits
including the anticipated rates of return on plan assets and discount rates used in determining the accrued benefit obligation, benefit
costs and annual pension funding requirements. The extent of the future impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on TEC’s financial results
and business operations cannot be predicted at this time and will depend on future developments, including the duration and severity
of the pandemic, further potential government actions, future economic activity and energy usage. Actual results may differ
significantly from these estimates.

6. Short-Term Debt
Credit Facilities

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Letters Letters
Credit Borrowings of Credit Credit Borrowings of Credit
(millions) B . Facilities Outstanding 1 Outstanding Facilities Outstanding () Outstanding
5-year facility @ 8 800 $ 345§ 1 S 400 s 295 $ 1
3-year accounts receivable facility 150 130 0 150 53 0
1-year term facility **! 300 300 0 0 e - ®
Total $ 1,250 $ 775 $ 1 8 550 $ 348 § 1

(1) Borrowings outstanding are reported as notes payable.
(2)  This 5-year facility matures March 22, 2023.

(3) This 3-year facility matures March 22, 2021.

(4) This 1-year term facility matures on April 29, 2021.

At December 31, 2020, these credit facilities required commitment fees ranging from 12.5 to 35.0 basis points. The weighted-
average interest rate on borrowings outstanding under the credit facilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 0.89% and 2.56%,
respectively.

Tampa Electric Company Non-Revolving Term Loan

On February 6, 2020, TEC entered into a 364-day, $300 million credit agreement with a group of banks. The credit agreement
had a maturity date of February 4, 2021; contains customary representations and warranties, events of default, and financial and other
covenants; and provides for interest to accrue at variable rates based on either the London interbank deposit rate, Wells Fargo Bank’s
prime rate, or the federal funds rate, plus a margin. On January 29, 2021, TEC extended the maturity date of the agreement to April
29, 2021.

Tampa Electric Company Accounts Receivable Facility

On March 23, 2018, TEC amended its $150 million accounts receivable collateralized borrowing facility in order to extend the
scheduled termination date to March 22, 2021, by entering into a Second Amended Loan and Servicing Agreement, among TEC,
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certain lenders and the program agent (the Loan Agreement). Throughout the term of the facility, TEC will pay program and liquidity
fees, which total 70 basis points at December 31, 2020. Interest rates on the borrowings are based on prevailing asset-backed
commerecial paper rates, unless such rates are not available from conduit lenders, in which case the rates will be at an interest rate
equal to either The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.’s prime rate, the federal funds rate, or the London interbank deposit rate, plus
amargin. In the case of default, as defined under the terms of the Loan Agreement, TEC has pledged as collateral a pool of
receivables equal to the borrowings outstanding. TEC continues to service, administer and collect the pledged receivables, which are
classified as receivables on the balance sheet. On July 14, 2020 and October 30, 2020, TEC amended the agreement in order to change
performance ratios. As of December 31, 2020, TEC was in compliance with the requirements of the Loan Agreement.

Tampa Electric Company 5-Year Credit Facility

On March 22, 2017, TEC amended its $325 million bank credit facility, entering into a Fifth Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement. The amendment extended the maturity date of the credit facility from December 17, 2018 to March 22, 2022 (subject to

further extension with the consent of each lender); provides for an interest rate based on either the London interbank

deposit rate, Wells Fargo Bank’s prime rate, or the federal funds rate, plus a margin. On December 19, 2019, TEC increased the
amount by $75 million to $400 million with no other changes from the prior agreement.

On December 18, 2020, TEC amended and restated its bank credit facility, entering into a Sixth Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement. The amendment extended the maturity date of the credit facility from March 22, 2022 to March 22, 2023 (subject to

further extension with the consent of each lender); increased the amount of the commitment by the lenders to $800 million; and

provided for an interest rate based on either the London interbank deposit rate, Wells Fargo Bank’s prime rate, or the
federal funds rate, plus a margin; allows TEC to borrow funds on a same-day basis under a swingline loan provision, which loans
mature on the fourth banking day after which any such loans are made and bear interest at an interest rate as agreed by the borrower
and the relevant swingline lender prior to the making of any such loans; continues to allow TEC to request the lenders to increase their
commitments under the credit facility by up to $100 million in the aggregate; includes a $80 million letter of credit facility; and made
other technical changes.

7. Long-Term Debt

A substantial part of Tampa Electric’s tangible assets are pledged as collateral to secure its first mortgage bonds. There are
currently no bonds outstanding under Tampa Electric’s first mortgage bond indenture, and Tampa Electric could cause the lien
associated with this indenture to be released at any time.

Tampa Electric Company 3.625% Notes due 2050

On July 24, 2019, TEC completed a sale of $300 million aggregate principal amount of 3.625% unsecured notes due June 15,
2050. Until December 15, 2049, TEC may redeem all or any part of the Notes at its option at a redemption price equal to the greater of
(1) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed or (i1) the sum of the present value of the remaining payments of
principal and interest on the Notes to be redeemed, discounted at an applicable treasury rate (as defined in the indenture), plus 20 basis
points; in either case, the redemption price would include accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. At any time on or after
December 15, 2049, TEC may, at its option, redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount of the Notes 